NPS Form 10-900 (Oct. 1990)

United States Department of the Interior National Park Service

# National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

This form is for use in nominating or requesting determinations for individual properties and district. See instructions in now to complete the National Register of Historic Places Registration Form (National Register Bulletin 16A). Complete each item by marking x in the appropriate

by entering the information requested. If an item de architectural classification, materials, and areas of entries and narrative items on continuation sheets	significance, ente	er only categories	and subcateg	ories from the	instructions. F	Place additional			
1. Name of Property									
historic nameLeamington Hote	el and Ap	partments							
other names/site number Penningto				Milner	Hotel;	Pacific	Hote		
1. Location						··			
street & number317 Marion Street					not for publication				
city or townSeattle .					□ vic	cinity			
state _Washington code _	-	King		code _0.	33 zip co	de <u>98104</u>			
3. State/Federal Agency Certification									
Mark   does not meet the National Recognition   Signature   State of Federal agency and bureau   In my opinion, the property   meets   does comments.)	ee continuation s	sheet for additional sheet for	al comments.)			ditional			
Signature of certifying official/Title		Date							
State or Federal agency and bureau			<del></del>						
4. National Park Service Certification		1					<del></del>		
I hereby certify that the property is:	- 1	\$ignature of the	Keeper /	A Frator	red in th	Date of Acti	on .		
entered in the National Register.  See continuation sheet.	Ed.	ion If	Beal	1 11	onal Regi		h4		
☐ determined eligible for the  National Register ☐ See continuation sheet. ☐ determined not eligible for the						.1.7			
National Register.  removed from the National Register.									
other, (explain:)							·		

Name of Property	artments	King Co County and		•
5. Classification				
Ownership or Property Categoric (Check as many boxes as apply) (Check	ory of Property only one box)	Number of Res (Do not include pre	y e count.)	
S p S	building(s) district site structure object	Contributing	Noncontributing	
		1	00	buildings
Dublic-State		0	0	sites
		0	0	structures
		0	00	objects
			0	Total
Name of related multiple property li (Enter "N/A" if property is not part of a multiple	sting e property listing.)	Number of con in the National	tributing resources pro Register	eviously listed
N/A	N/A			
6. Function or Use				
Historic Functions (Enter categories from instructions)		Current Functions (Enter categories from		
DOMESTIC/hotel and		VACANT/NOT	IN USE	
DOMESTIC/multiple dwelli	ng and .			
COMMERCE/restaurant				
		<del></del>		
				<u> </u>
7. Description				
Architectural Classification (Enter categories from instructions)		Materials (Enter categories from	instructions)	
CLASSICAL REVIVAL		foundationCON	CRETE	
TUDOR REVIVAL		walls BRI		
		, , , , , ,	OTTAT III	
			PHALT	<u> </u>
			RRA COTTA	
		Irc	n	

Narrative Description (Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)

King County, WA

	_					_	_	_	
Ċ	Ōι	inty	and	S	tat	e			

8. Statement of Significance	
Applicable National Register Criteria (Mark "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property	Areas of Significance (Enter categories from instructions)
for National Register listing.)	ARCHITECTURE
X A Property is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of	COMMERCE
our history.	
B Property is associated with the lives of persons	
significant in our past.	
X C Property embodies the distinctive characteristics	·
of a type, period, or method of construction or	
represents the work of a master, or possesses	
high artistic values, or represents a significant and	Period of Significance
distinguishable entity whose components lack individual distinction.	1915 - 1943
manada distinction.	
□ D Property has yielded, or is likely to yield,	
information important in prehistory or history.	
Criteria Considerations	
(Mark "x" in all the boxes that apply.)	Significant Dates
	1915-1916
Property is:	
A owned by a religious institution or used for	
religious purposes.	
	Significant Person
B removed from its original location.	(Complete if Criterion B is marked above)
☐ <b>C</b> a birthplace or grave.	
C a birthplace of grave.	Cultural Affiliation
D a cemetery.	
	N/A
E a reconstructed building, object, or structure.	
F a commemorative property.	
_ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
G less than 50 years of age or achieved significance	Architect/Builder
within the past 50 years.	Willcox, Walter Ross Baumes
	Everett, Julian F.
Narrative Statement of Significance	
Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)	
9. Major Bibliographical References	
Bibilography	
Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one	
Previous documentation on file (NPS):	Primary location of additional data:
preliminary determination of individual listing (36	State Historic Preservation Office
CFR 67) has been requested  previously listed in the National Register	☐ Other State agency ☐ Federal agency
previously determined eligible by the National	☐ Local government
Register	1 University
☐ designated a National Historic Landmark	[] Other
recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey	Name of repository:
# recorded by Historic American Engineering	
Record #	•

Leamington Hotel and Apartments	King County, wa
Name of Property	County and State
10. Geographical Data	
Acreage of Property less than one	
UTM References (Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet.)	
1 1 0 5 5 0 2 8 0 5 2 7 2 4 2 0 Northing	3 Zone Easting Northing 4 See continuation sheet
Verbal Boundary Description (Describe the boundaries of the property on a continuation sheet.)	
Boundary Justification (Explain why the boundaries were selected on a continuation sheet.)	
11. Form Prepared By	
name/title Shirley L. Courtois, Architectura	l Historian
organization for Plymouth Housing Group	dateOctober 4, 1993
street & number 4021 E. Highland Drive	telephone (206) 325-9346
city or townseattles	tate zip code98112
Additional Documentation	
Submit the following items with the completed form:	
Continuation Sheets	
Maps	
A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the prope	rty's location.
A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having lar	ge acreage or numerous resources.
Photographs	
Representative black and white photographs of the proper	ty.
Additional items (Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items)	
Property Owner	
(Complete this item at the request of SHPO or FPO.)	
name Seafirst Bank (contact: Steve Salyer,	vice pres., Real Estate Group)
street & number 800 Fifth Avenue, Suite 2900	telephone (206) 358-3485
city or town Seattle si	tate <u>WA</u> zip code <u>98104</u>

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response to this request is required to obtain a benefit in accordance with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470 et seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18.1 hours per response including time for reviewing instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect of this form to the Chief, Administrative Services Division, National Park Service, P.O. Box 37127, Washington, DC 20013-7127; and the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reductions Projects (1024-0018), Washington, DC 20503.

NPS Form 10-900-a

United States Department of the Interior National Park Service

# NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACE CONTINUATION SHEET

RECEIVED 413

APR 4094

ES INTERAGENCY RESERVICE

Section number 7

Leamington Hotel and Apartments

Page #1

The Leamington Hotel and Apartments were built in 1915-16 as separate but conjoined properties with distinguishing features. The three-story apartment wing and four-story hotel wing are each L-shaped in plan and are joined to form a single U-shaped building enclosing a courtyard. Exterior walls are faced with red brick. The street facade of the hotel wing is enriched by a profusion of glazed terra cotta tiles, both flat and The exterior of the apartment wing is more restrained, with decorative terra cotta concentrated at the two entrances on its north and east facades. Only the hotel wing contains a lobby that, although substantially altered, retains marble wainscoting, terrazzo floor and tiled fireplace. The interior arrangement is a standard double-loaded corridor, the west wing originally containing single hotel rooms with communal bathrooms and the east wing housing fully serviced apartments. Later alterations included the addition of private bathrooms for many of the hotel rooms and the updating of kitchens and bathrooms in the apartment wing. ground-level space at the northwest corner of the building originally and for many decades functioned as a restaurant or cafe. While the interior has undergone some significant changes, the exterior of the building is remarkably well preserved. Its location in the central business district is also notable, with three historic properties in close proximity.

The combined hotel and apartment building is situated on the southwest corner of the intersection of Fourth Avenue and Marion Street in downtown Seattle. Across Fourth Avenue is the 1904 Rainier Club (National Register) and across Marion Street is the 1930 YMCA Building (Seattle City Landmark). The 1906 Central Building occupies the western half of the block, separated from the Leamington by an alley. Adjacent blocks contain modern hi-rises of 40 to 76 stories.

The Leamington has a U-shaped plan. The north or Marion Street facade forms the base of the U, its 111-foot length divided equally between the hotel and apartment sections. The east (apartment) wing extends 120 feet on Fourth Avenue, and the corresponding west (hotel) wing faces on the alley which bisects the block. The 35-foot wide courtyard formed by the U is oriented to the interior of the block.

The two wings share a uniform cornice height; however, because of the sharp downward slope of Marion Street from east to west, the basement of the three-story apartment wing rises partially above grade at its western end, and the basement of the four-story hotel wing also appears above grade at the furthest western corner. Both wings are supported on a poured concrete foundation. The structural system is reinforced concrete frame with infill walls of clay tile.

The separate functions of the two wings are clearly differentiated by their exterior appearance. The apartment wing, which occupies the corner and therefore presents two street facades, attains a certain elegance by the use of French window forms, wrought-iron railings at mock balconies, and creamcolored classically detailed terra cotta trim. The two entrances, one centered on the Marion Street facade and the other located near the southern

### NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES CONTINUATION SHEET

Section And And The

NPS Form 10-900-

Leamington Hotel and Apartments

Page #2

end of the Fourth Avenue facade, are enhanced by wide frames of terra cotta blocks and surmounted by second-story windows given special treatment by the use of terra cotta quoins and balustrade. Two decorative terra cotta panels, depicting back-to-back cornucopia in low relief, are set into the brickwork on either side of the entrances at the third floor level. Sills, lintels, keystones and coping of cream-colored glazed terra cotta contrast with the dark red brick of the wall surface. The basement level, which rises partially above grade as both streets slope downward from the corner, is also clad with terra cotta tile blocks.

The hotel wing to the west shares the same floor alignment and roof line. Its half of the Marion Street facade, however, is greatly enriched by the use of terra cotta quoins at the edges of each of its six piers, terra cotta spandrels incorporating applied cusped arches and quatrefoils, and an open balustrade at the cornice level surmounted by obelisk-shaped finals. The recessed entry, centered in the five-bay elevation, is enframed by additional ornamental glazed terra cotta tiles and a hanging keystone above the segmental-arched opening. The wall surfaces of the west or alley elevation of this wing, as well as those of the courtyard, are stucco covered.

Fenestration is regular throughout, although the two wings are differentiated by their window spacing and character. The apartment wing is distinguished by large tripartite windows consisting of a central double-hung unit of six-over-one lights flanked by narrow five-pane sidelights. Smaller double-hung windows occur in the bays flanking the two main entrances. All window units retain their original wood frames and sash. The street facade of the hotel wing is characterized by paired double-hung windows between the piers. The original wood frames and sash of four-over-one lights are still intact. At the alley and courtyard elevations, single window openings are regularly spaced. Wood-frame double-hung sash of one-over-one lights is common, although steel sash is used at the ground floor alley and in the end units of the courtyard. In addition, small mock balconies of wrought iron appear on the apartment wing of the courtyard elevation. The south end walls of each wing are blank.

The interior of both wings has been altered, although many significant features remain. The original Marion Street entry to the hotel has been replaced with aluminum-framed plate glass double doors. Early furnishings of the lobby have been removed. Remaining features include terrazzo flooring, marble wainscoting, marble treads and risers of the main stairway, and a fireplace front of brown glazed square tiles. Removal of a panel of the modern suspended ceiling revealed the absence of any original moldings or other details. The end wall of a short hallway west of the lobby contains a large art glass window, with the letter L appearing in a central floral design.

A second stairway descends from the lobby to the daylight basement space at the northwest corner of the building. This originally and for many decades functioned as a restaurant or cafe. In more recent times it has been used for offices and other purposes, and no significant features survive. The remainder of the basement contains restrooms, a boiler room and storage areas.

NPS Form 10-900-a (8-86) OMB Approval No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior National Park Service

## NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES CONTINUATION SHEET

Section number 7

Leamington Hotel and Apartments

Page #3

Upper floors of the hotel wing have a standard double-loaded corridor configuration. Originally, common bathrooms were located on each floor. In the 1960s some sleeping rooms were converted to two bathrooms accommodating the adjacent rooms. Much of the original millwork--simple door and window surrounds--is intact, although doors have been altered or replaced and all hardware has been replaced.

There is no lobby in the apartment wing. Small entryways at each entrance provide access to narrow stairways with marble treads and wood risers. The original wood railings of simple design are intact. Millwork in the apartment wing is somewhat more refined, and the two and three room apartments more spacious. The kitchens and bathrooms have been modernized and very little original fabric remains in these areas.

While alterations and modernizations have affected the interiors of both wings, the exterior of the Leamington remains remarkably well preserved. Curiously, early advertisements for the hotel and apartments include engravings showing a uniform exterior, with the terra cotta enrichments of the hotel wing carried throughout the north and east facades of the apartment wing. Yet, an early historic photograph proves that the current appearance conforms to the original construction.

## NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES CONTINUATION SHEET

Section number 8

Leamington Hotel and Apartments

Page #1

The Leamington Hotel and Apartments is a handsomely detailed and exceptionally well preserved example of an early twentieth century building type that has largely disappeared from Seattle's downtown core. It is locally unique in the manner in which the two functions are differentiated by the distinctive design of each wing of the building. The property is associated with a number of locally significant personages, but is particularly noteworthy for its architect, W.R.B. Willcox, who shaped both the teaching of architecture and its professional practice in the 1920s and 1930s, and its developer, Dr. Edward L. Smith, who nurtured the early development of the Congregational Church in the Northwest before embarking on international service for this denomination.

#### Historical Background and Significance

At the time the Leamington was constructed in 1915-16, Seattle was already well supplied with hotels, both large and small. During a period of rapid growth after the Great Fire of 1889, many hostelries were erected to accommodate both the carriage trade and the transient seamen, laborers and fortune seekers on their way to the Alaskan gold fields. The Alaska-Yukon-Pacific Exposition of 1909 was a stimulus to further expansion of hotel room capacity. By 1910 Seattle boasted 475 hotels, reportedly providing more accommodations than any city of the same size in the country.

Many of these early establishments fell victim to fire or changing economic conditions. Some were demolished or moved as changing land use patterns affected the downtown and its periphery. Bad management or lack of clientele forced others into bankruptcy or compelled them to sell at a loss. The apartment hotel concept had arrived in Seattle at the turn of the century, and large well-appointed examples of this type were erected downtown and on First Hill. This East Coast phenomenon never really caught on, however, and the grand residential hotels struggled financially.

By the mid-'teens the idea of a small-scale establishment, combining both a transient hotel and apartments with hotel service, seemed a reasonable venture. If the transient population fluctuated, rental of the apartment units would compensate, and vice versa. An article in *The Hotel Monthly* of February 1915 quoted a local hotelier as confident that the number of travelers to Seattle would soon increase. The war in Europe was diverting tourists to other destinations, the California expositions would attract vacationers to the West Coast, and the lure of Alaska as a traveler's adventure would ensure a supply of passengers heading north.

The rationale for building a small-scale combined hotel and apartment seemed evident to the Leamington's developer, Dr. Edward Lincoln Smith. Smith was for half a century one of the most influential Congregational clergymen of the Pacific Northwest. Upon his graduation from Yale Divinity School in 1890, he joined a group of five other graduates who were assigned to the Northwest states. Representing the Home Missionary Board of the Congregational denomination, the missionaries organized and ministered to parishes in Washington, Idaho and Oregon, and collectively came to be known as the "Yale Band."

## NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES CONTINUATION SHEET

Section number 8

Leamington Hotel and Apartments

Page #2

After fulfilling initial assignments, Dr. Smith arrived in Seattle in 1899. Under his guidance, a small Sunday school in the North Broadway district was developed and organized as the Pilgrim Congregational Church. Quickly outgrowing its early meeting places, the parish constructed a new church building in 1906, which is still standing. Dr. Smith's skills were valued and, in addition to his church work, he was active in civic affairs, serving eight terms on the Seattle School Board. In 1912 he left for New York where he served as secretary of the American Board of Commissioners for Foreign Missions. In this capacity he traveled abroad, visiting India, Japan and China, where he established a close association with Peking University. Returning to Seattle in 1921, he resumed the pastorate of Pilgrim Church, then pursued other pastoral work until his death in 1940.

It was during his tenure with the Board of Foreign Missions that Dr. Smith, working through the real estate agents West and Wheeler, purchased the site at Fourth and Marion and developed the Leamington Hotel and Apartments. As architects he chose Julian F. Everett, who had designed the 1906 Pilgrim Church, and W.R.B. Willcox, who had practiced locally since 1907. Willcox and his former partner, William Sayward, had designed a new heating plant for the Pilgrim Church, and in later years Willcox would design a residence for Dr. Smith in the fashionable Mt. Baker neighborhood. The structural engineer on the project was Henry Bittman, whose architectural and engineering firm produced several significant commercial buildings, particularly during the 1920s.

Of the two architects, Willcox is the more notable. His architectural work encompasses a variety of projects, including residences, commercial and institutional buildings, and such public works as the Arboretum Sewer Viaduct (National Register) and the Queen Anne Boulevard Retaining Walls (Seattle City Landmark). His most significant achievement, however, is the transformation of architectural education that he brought about at the University of Oregon while Head of the Department of Architecture from 1922 to 1947.

Walter Ross Baumes Willcox (1869-1947) was a Vermont native who had only brief formal training in architecture. A smattering of courses at East Coast schools and apprenticeships at firms in Chicago and Boston preceded the inauguration of his practice in Burlington, Vermont, in 1894. He later formed a partnership with William J. Sayward, an M.I.T. graduate, and the two moved to Seattle in 1907. Their arrival coincided with an economic slump that produced few clients. Willcox busied himself by serving on the Municipal Planning Board, continuing his interest in social, economic and political reform, and developing the philosophical underpinnings of his architectural theories. Sayward left Seattle in 1912 and Willcox remained to practice alone until his departure for Eugene, Oregon, in 1922.

Little is known of the architect Julian F. Everett, although many of his works have achieved recognition. He is listed in Polk's Seattle City Directory from 1905 to 1922. During this period he designed the above-mentioned Pilgrim Congregational Church, the Temple de Hirsch (National Register; recently demolished), the Pioneer Square Pergola (National Historic Landmark), Fire Station No. 23 (National Register), the Julius Redelsheimer House (National Register), and numerous other residences,

## NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES CONTINUATION SHEET

Section number 8

Leamington Hotel and Apartments

Page #3

hotels, and commercial buildings. He is mentioned in the September 21, 1912 issue of the *Town Crier* as the designer of "as many beautiful buildings as any architect in the Northwest," but one who does not advertise himself or his work.

Construction of the Leamington was completed in the spring of 1916. The earliest alterations (May 1916) were requested by Charles Blanc, who opened Blanc's Cafe in the northwest corner of the above-grade basement of the hotel. In early print advertisements, mention of the cafe ("Where Epicureans Meet") was prominent. Charles Blanc, a French-born, classically-trained, widely-traveled chef, was well known to Seattle's discriminating diners. He had been Chef de Cuisine at the Rainier Club, the Rainier Grand Hotel and the New Washington Hotel among others. His own cafe at the Leamington became so popular that he soon outgrew the space, moving to extravagantly furnished quarters at the New Arctic (now Morrison) Hotel in 1920. He continued to operate Blanc's Petit Cafe at the Leamington, but when his new venture failed he moved across Marion Street, where Maison Blanc was a fixture of the local dining scene for many decades. No evidence of Blanc's occupancy at the Leamington survives.

The Leamington, which apparently was named for its original manager, J.K. Leaming, was renamed the Pennington under new management in 1918. By 1921 it was the Penbrook Hotel and Apartments and remained so until 1965 when the name changed to the Milner Highland and, later, simply the Milner. It has been known as the Pacific Hotel since 1981.

During the Second World War the United States government established a policy of leasing hotels in port cities to accommodate the vast numbers of merchant marine seamen serving the war effort. Hotels were requisitioned in San Francisco, New Orleans, Baltimore, and other coastal cities, while a seamen's club was opened at the Hotel Wilshire in New York City. On May 4, 1943 the Seattle Port Area Committee of the United Seamen's Service announced that the Penbrook Hotel would be taken over and its permanent guests would be assisted in finding other housing. This action thereby ended the Leamington's period of significance as a dual-purpose accommodation.

After the war, the Penbrook continued to operate as both a transient hotel and an apartment house. In 1967, in order to compete with more modern establishments, the hotel wing was refitted to provide private bathrooms for many of the rooms. Kitchens and bathrooms in the apartment wing were upgraded. In the late 1980s the aging hotel was closed and the property has been vacant for the past three years.

### NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES CONTINUATION SHEET

Section number 9

Leamington Hotel and Apartments

Page #1

#### Bibliography

- Bagley, Clarence B. History of King County, Washington. Chicago and Seattle: S.J. Clark Publishing Co., 1929. Biography of Dr. Edward Lincoln Smith, Vol. 2: 387-390.
- "Blanc to Move." Hotel News of the West (March 20, 1920): 1.
- Broderick, Henry. Mirrors of Seattle's Old Hotels. Printed for Henry Broderick, Christmas, 1965, by Frank McCaffrey at the Dogwood Press, Seattle.
- City of Seattle, Department of Construction and Land Use. Permit records for Lots 2 and 3, Block 26, C.D. Boren's Addition to the Plat of Seattle.
- Everett and Baker File. Architects Pamphlet File. Special Collections, Allen Library, University of Washington.
- Genasci, Don. "Walter Willcox: The Relation of Architecture to Society."

  W.R.B. Willcox, His Architectural and Educational Theory. Department
  of Architecture, School of Architecture and Allied Arts, University of
  Oregon, February 1980.
- The Heritage of Seattle Hotels 1853-1970. Seattle: The Fashion Group, Inc., Seattle Regional Group, 1970.
- Link, Karen. "Architect and Engineer: Henry Bittman." Impressions of Imagination: Terra Cotta Seattle. Seattle: Allied Arts of Seattle, 1986.
- Obituaries for Dr. Edward L. Smith. Pamphlet file, Special Collections, Allen Library, University of Washington. Seattle Post-Intelligencer, July 26, 1940; and Seattle Times, July 25, 1940.
- "Penbrook to serve seamen." Seattle Times (May 4, 1943). Clipping file, Seattle Public Library.
- Potter, Elisabeth Walton. "W.R.B. Willcox: A Note on the Seattle Years." Festschrift: A Collection of Essays on Architectural History.
  Prepared by the Northern Pacific Coast Chapter, Society of Architectural Historians, 1978.
- "Seattle Hotel Keeper Optimistic." The Hotel Monthly. Vol. 23, No. 263 (February 1915): 78.
- "Seattle 'Pivotal City,' Business Heart of Far Northwest." The Hotel Monthly. Vol. 23, No. 271 (October 1915): 55-59.

### NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES CONTINUATION SHEET

Section number 9

Leamington Hotel and Apartments

Page #2

### Bibliography Continued

Shelman, David. "Freedom and Responsibility: The Educational Philosophy of Walter Willcox." W.R.B. Willcox: His Architectural and Educational Theory. Department of Architecture, School of Architecture and Allied Arts, University of Oregon, February 1980.

Smith, Nancy K. "Annals of Oregon: W.R.B. Willcox." The Call Number, Vol. 29, No. 2 (Fall 1968): 18-24.

### Verbal Boundary Description

Lots 2 and 3, Block 26, C.D. Boren's Addition to the Plat of Seattle.

### Boundary Justification

The boundary encompasses the city lots that retain the original property lines.

For all photographs:

- 1. Leamington Hotel and Apartments
- 2. King County, WA
- 3. Michael Romine
- 4. June 1993
- 5. Stickney and Murphy, Architects, Seattle, WA

#### No. 1

6. East and north facades, looking southwest

### No. 2

6. North (Marion Street) facade, looking southwest

#### No. 3

6. Hotel wing, detail of north facade, looking south

#### No 4

6. Hotel wing, detail of entrance on north facade, looking south

#### No. 5

6. Apartment wing, detail of entrance on north facade, looking south

#### No. 6

6. Detail of hotel lobby, southwest corner, looking southwest

## NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES CONTINUATION SHEET

Section number 9

Leamington Hotel and Apartments

Page #3

No.

6. Hotel interior, west wall, detail of window, looking west

No. 8

6. Hotel interior, corridor, looking north

No. 9

6. Apartment interior, northeast corner, looking northeast

No. 10

6. Hotel interior, typical room, looking north